UNITED
NATIONS A

Di str.
GENERAL

XN
\\/‘“ 1}\} General Assembly

=<

A/ CN. 9/ SR 592
24 Narch 1997

ORI G NAL: ENGLI SH

UNI TED NATI ONS COWM SSI ON ON | NTERNATI ONAL TRADE LAW
Twenty-ni nth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 592nd MEETI NG
Hel d at Headquarters, New York,
on Monday, 3 June 1996, at 3 p.m

Chai r man; Ms. PIAGE de VANGCSSI (Argentina)

CONTENTS

ELECTRONI C DATA | NTERCHANGE: DRAFT MODEL LAW POSSI BLE FUTURE WORK ( conti nued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be subnmitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a menmorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Chief, Oficial Records Editing Section, Ofice of Conference and Support
Services, room DC2-794, 2 United Nations Pl aza.

Any corrections to the records of the meetings of this session will be
consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued shortly after the end of
t he session.

96- 80724 (E) /...



A/ CN. 9/ SR 592
Engl i sh
Page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.15 p.m

ELECTRONI C DATA | NTERCHANGE: DRAFT MODEL LAW POSSI BLE FUTURE WORK ( conti nued)
(A/50/17; A/ CN. 9/ 421 and 426)

Article 14 (continued)

1. M. MADRID (Spain) said that there was a | ack of consistency between the
third sentence of paragraph 113 of the proposed draft Guide to Enactnment and
article 14, paragraph 4, of the Draft Mdel Law. Under paragraph 4, the parties
could, at their discretion, avoid the application of a given jurisdiction. 1In
his country, there was a general rule that such procedural issues were
established by | aw on the basis of objective facts, one such fact being the
actual place where a contract was entered into or, as in the current case, the
pl ace where a data message was received or sent. \Wile paragraph 4 established
some presunptions regarding the place where the nessage was sent or received,
the place of receipt was inpossible to verify because the information was
conputerized. For procedural purposes then, it seened reasonable, in public
law, that a provision should also be made to prevent the parties from
establishing, at their discretion, tax havens where they could habitually send
and receive data nessages without naintaining either a conmercial or residentia
pl ace of business there. Such a practice would run counter to the |aws of
virtually any country.

2. He therefore proposed the deletion fromarticle 14, paragraph 4, of the

wor ds "unl ess otherw se agreed between the originator and the addressee of a
conputeri zed transm ssion of a data nessage", and the insertion in paragraph 5
of the word "procedural", between the words "admi nistrative" and "crimnal". To
ensure that that paragraph was consistent with the others, he would support the
general proposal of the Mexican del egation. Throughout the article, any
reference to discretion between the originator and the addressee shoul d be
del et ed

3. M. BURMAN (United States of America) said that he could not agree with the
proposal of the representative of Spain. It was critical to retain for
commercial parties the ability to negotiate as between thensel ves a rule by

whi ch they woul d determ ne when their contractual actions would be deened to
have taken place, particularly since it was very difficult to apply nornal
conflict and contractual rules to events taking place through computerized
messages whi ch passed over many countries and might come fromquite renote
stations. Paragraph 4 was a default rule that sought to provide a standard only
when the parties had not otherw se agreed. While his del egation woul d not

object to having the drafting group consider the possibility of renoving the
phrase "unl ess ot herw se agreed" from paragraph 4, such action should be
consistent with article 10, paragraph 1. Should the effect of a drafting change
be to renpbve the discretion of the parties to make such an agreenment between

t hensel ves, then the change woul d constitute an unacceptabl e step backwards.

The Conmi ssion did not need to - nor should it attenpt to - rework the rules for
public | aw purposes. For the sane reason, addition of the word "procedural"
woul d be a nost unfortunate step. H's delegation had already accepted, with



A/ CN. 9/ SR 592
Engl i sh
Page 3

great difficulty, the word "adm ni strative" because of its excessive reach in
the context of commercial |aw rules or comrercial transactions.

4. M. TELL (France) said that paragraph 4 did not provide for rules on the
conflict of laws or for a rule of jurisdiction, so he did not see how the
representative of Spain could infer that it provided for a rule allocating
conpetence to a specific jurisdiction. |In principle, where contracts were
concerned, the applicable | aw was the | aw chosen by the parties. He was not in
favour of adding the word "procedural"” to paragraph 5 since conflict rules and
jurisdiction rules differed fromcountry to country.

5. M. MADRID (Spain) said he was not proposing that the abilities of the
parties to cone to an agreement should be elimnated or curtailed; that
situation was covered by article 10. |If other del egations had any objection to
deleting the beginning of article 14, paragraph 4, he would not object to its
retention. However, if exceptions were made for the broader issue of

adm ni strative norns, then exceptions should al so be nmade for the narrower issue
of procedural law. Parties could not by thensel ves determ ne anythi ng which

m ght run counter to adm nistrative norns, yet the paragraph as currently
drafted seenmed to allow themto sidestep procedural nornms which were part of
public | aw

6. M. SANDOVAL LOPEZ (Chile) endorsed the statenent by the representative of
Spai n.

7. M. BURMAN (United States of America) said it was highly unlikely that a
party's choice of place for commercial and contractual purposes would cause a
court to consider itself bound by that choice with regard to jurisdiction. The
Conmi ssion was inviting a great deal of disregard of the nodel |aw by providing
along list of very broad exclusions in paragraph 5. For the United States, the
word "procedural” covered a broad range of activities and events, but no United
States judicial authorities had felt that it in any way inplicated choice of
jurisdiction. He hoped that the Conmm ssion would not begin to add to the

al ready excessive list of exceptional terns in paragraph 5.

8. M. ALLEN (United Kingdom) said that if the representative of Spain was
concerned principally about tax evasion, then paragraph 5 could state that

par agraph 4 was subject to the provisions of adm nistrative crimnal data-
protection or tax |aw instead of the present wording. Then it would be left to
nati onal |law to decide, for exanple, whether for the purposes of tax lawit
woul d be possible to contract out of paragraph 4.

9. M. CHOUJKRI (Observer for Mrocco) said that he supported the United States
proposal to del ete paragraph 5 because that paragraph created nore probl ens than
it solved.

10. M. MADRID (Spain) said he would prefer that paragraph 5 should be deleted
since, in any case, article 1 provided that States could specify those areas of
law in which they did not wish the Mbdel Law to be applicable

11. M. SCHNEIDER (Germany) said that, having realized that the concept of
adm nistrative law did not necessarily include tax |aw, his del egati on endorsed

/...



A/ CN. 9/ SR 592
Engl i sh
Page 4

the retention of paragraph 5 together with a proviso that would nake it clear
that the rule applied also to tax |aw.

12. M. TELL (France) said that he did not agree with the deletion of
paragraph 5. As a conpromise, the words "crimnal or tax or data protection”
coul d be added after the word "adm nistrative"

13. M. ANDERSEN (Cbserver for Denmark) suggested that, instead of discussing
the particul ar areas of |aw which should be included or excluded, the Conm ssion
shoul d consi der using | anguage sinmlar to that of article 5, paragraph 2, and
article 6, paragraph 2

14. M. UCH DA (Japan) and M. ZHANG Yuging (China) supported the United States
proposal to del ete paragraph 5.

15. M. LLOYD (Australia) said that he had understood the United States

del egation as advocating the retention of article 14, paragraph 5, as it stood
wi t hout the need for any further anendments, a position which his del egation
endorsed. The word "admi nistrative" was broad enough, and any |l ack of clarity
coul d be taken care of in the CGuide to Enactnent.

16. M. BISCHOFF (Cbserver for Switzerland) supported the retention of
paragraphs 4 and 5 in their current fornulation

17. Ms. BAZAROVA (Russian Federation), referring to paragraph 5, said that
since adm nistrative |law was confined to a very narrow area of |law in her
country, specific mention should be nmade of tax law as well. She also w shed to
know what was nmeant by the term "data-protection | aw'

18. The CHAI RMAN suggested that the Comm ssion should take up the Danish
proposal and include a paragraph in article 15, paragraph 5, along the |ines of
article 5, paragraph 2, and article 6, paragraph 2.

19. Ms. REMSU (Qbserver for Canada), M. SCHNEIDER (Gernany) and Ms. BAZAROVA
(Russi an Federation) supported the Chairman's suggestion

20. M. MADRID (Spain) said that he, too, supported the proposal. However, the
Spani sh text of article 5, paragraph 2, article 6, paragraph 2, and article 13,
par agraph 2, nust be standardized, as in the English version

21. M. BAZAROVA (Russian Federation) said that there was an inconsistency
bet ween paragraphs 3 and 4 of article 14. Paragraph 3 used the broad term
"informati on systent while paragraph 4 referred to "conputerized transm ssion"
of a data message; the word "conputerized" should be del eted

22. M. ANDERSEN (Observer for Denmark) supported that proposal
23. M. ALLEN (United Kingdom) said that the word "conputerized" had been

inserted in paragraph 4 because it had been felt that the difficulty which the
par agr aph sought to solve would occur only in conmputerized transm ssions.



A/ CN. 9/ SR 592
Engl i sh
Page 5

24, M. CHANDLER (United States of Anerica) said that his del egati on supported
t he Russi an proposal; although the original reason for including the nore
restrictive termnol ogy was valid, the distinction that was made coul d raise
qguestions in the mnd of the reader. The Conm ssion nmust ensure the ease of
application of the Mdel Law.

25. M. TELL (France) said that if the word "conputerized" was del eted
par agraph 4 woul d be neani ngl ess. An expl anation of the paragraph was provi ded
in the Guide to Enactnent.

26. M. ANDERSEN (Observer for Denmark) said he supported the Russian proposa
because of the probl ens which arose with the definition of a "data nessage"

The distinction made in paragraph 4 was very difficult to maintain, and it would
be better to avoid referring to particular types of technol ogy.

27. M. DONG Yi (China) said that his del egation supported the Russian

proposal. In article 2, the definition of "data nmessage"” covered, but was not
limted to, electronic data interchange, electronic nmail, telegram telex and
telecopy; if the reference in article 14, paragraph 4, was limted to
"conputerized transm ssion", | oopholes would remain

28. M. CHANDLER (United States of Anerica) said that in the past the

Conmi ssi on had been careful to use the word "conputerized" because of
uncertainties as to the tine of dispatch of faxes. However, the words
"informati on systent took care of that problem \hile distinction between
telex, fax and electronic mail was sonetines blurred, they were all part of an
i nformati on system and proper control could be maintained.

29. M. LLOYD (Australia) said that the words "of a conputerized transm ssion
of a data nmessage"” shoul d be del eted from paragraph 4.

30. M. CHANDLER (United States of Anmerica) supported that proposal

31. M. LLOYD (Australia) said that article 14, paragraph 1, left open the
possibility that there m ght be no dispatch date if an originator of a nessage
had an agent send that nessage. He proposed that the words "or of the person
who sends the data nessage on behal f of the originator"” should be added.

32. M. REMBU (Canada), M. ALLEN (United Kingdom) and M. CHANDLER (United
States of America) said that they supported the Australian proposal

33. M. ANDERSEN (Observer for Denmark) said that his del egation al so supported
t he proposal; although the term"originator” was defined in article 2,
subparagraph (c), it was worth clarifying the neaning of article 14,

par agraph 1.

34, Article 14, as orally amended, was adopt ed.

The neeting was suspended at 4.30 p.m and resuned at 4.55 p. m




A/ CN. 9/ SR 592

Engl i sh
Page 6
Article 2

35 M. SORIEUL (International Trade Law Branch), introducing article 2,
recalled that there were two issues to be resol ved concerning subparagraph (a):
firstly, whether it was appropriate to include tel ecopy as part of the
definition of a data message; and secondly, whether a clear definition or an
alternative termcould be found for the word "anal ogous” in the second |ine of
the English text.

36. M. ANDERSEN (Observer for Denmark) said that "anal ogous" could be a source
of confusion because of its simlarity to the term "anal og".

37. M. MADRID (Spain) said that subparagraph (a) should perhaps be redrafted
so that paper-based informati on was nore clearly excluded; otherw se, there
could be some confusion as to its scope. It was inportant to ensure that the
Model Law did not affect well-established national practices in respect of rules
concer ni ng paper-based docunentary evidence; the inclusion of the words
"telegram telex or telecopy” was likely to cause difficulties in that respect.

38. M. ANDERSEN (Observer for Denmark) suggested that the word "digital™”
shoul d be added before the word "information"” in the first line. It should be
borne in mind that telegrans, telexes and telecopies, in digital form could be
processed by conputers, and in such cases should fall within the scope of the
Model Law.

39. M. CHANDLER (United States of Anerica) noted that in the future
i nformati on would be transmitted in digital, analog or optical form It would
be unwise to Iimt the scope of the Mbdel Law to digital information.

40. M. BAUM (Cbserver for the International Chanber of Commerce) agreed with
t he precedi ng speaker, adding that great restraint should be exercised in
attenpting to reinvent definitions. He, too, felt that the word "anal ogous”
coul d cause confusion and suggested that it should be replaced by the word
"simlar".

41. M. PHUA (Singapore) said that his delegation did not support the proposa
to add the word "digital” before the word "information", since it would preclude
the application of the Mddel Law to analog information. Also, he agreed with
the representative of Spain regarding the di sadvantages of including nore
conventional means such as mail, telegram telex or telecopy in the definition
of "data nessage”. That definition should be restricted to EDI, and the title
of the Model Law should be reworded accordingly.

42. M. HONAND (United Kingdom said that information generated, stored or
conmuni cated i n anal og form should not be excluded. He proposed that the words
"in digital or analog fornt should be added after the word "conmuni cated”, and
that the word "anal ogous” shoul d be del et ed.

43. M. MADRID (Spain) said that to do so would preclude other formnms of

i nformati on which m ght be used in the future. To |eave the Mdel Law open to
future devel opnents in information technol ogy, the subparagraph should sinply
state: "(a) 'Data nessage' neans information generated, stored or conmunicated

/...



A/ CN. 9/ SR 592
Engl i sh
Page 7

by electronic or simlar nmeans including, but not I[imted to, electronic data
i nterchange (EDI)." That wording nmight still cover electronic mail, but it
woul d avoid interfering with established national practices in respect of
docunentary evidence in the formof telegram telex or tel ecopy.

44, M. ANDERSEN (Observer for Denmark) said it was not possible to have a
Model Law that covered every present and future aspect of comunications. He

t herefore proposed retaining the definition of data nmessage as drafted, using
the word "simlar" to replace "anal ogous”. The various views of the Comm ssion
regarding the definition of the term"data nmessage"” should be included in

par agraphs 45 and 46 of the CGuide to Enactnment with a note explaining that the
Model Law had been drafted taking into account existing technol ogy, but that in
the future, other communication technol ogies would al so be covered. Definitions
in the Mbdel Law should be drafted in a way that allowed for sone degree of
interpretation, particularly by judges.

45. M. SORIEUL (International Trade Law Branch) said that EDI, as defined in
article 2, subparagraph (b), referred to a narrow techni que of transferring

i nformati on between conputers and did not cover all uses of electronic data,
such as electronic mail. In future, communications would include EDI as well as
other, less restrictive technol ogies, such as electronic mail and the Internet.
Thus, it was of greater inportance at present to lay down rules that applied to
t hose technol ogies and not only to the relatively sophisticated EDI form of
exchanges. |If the current definition of EDI did not include electronic mail,

t he Model Law woul d be useless in the future.

46. M. CHANDLER (United States of Anerica) agreed that an overly restrictive
definition of EDI woul d destroy any useful ness of the Mbdel Law. A definition
of the term "data nmessage"” should include electronic mail, which was used to
forward EDI messages, as well as such nethods as "FDI ", the fax transm ssion of

i nformati on that was subsequently transferred into an EDI system \Wile ED was
central to the transfer of information, all the EDI-rel ated comuni cations
attachnents shoul d al so be covered under the Mddel Lawif it was to be useful in
the future

47. M. GUREYEVA (Russi an Federation) proposed replacing the phrase
"electronic, optical or anal ogous nmeans" in subparagraph (a), with the term
"aut omat ed nmeans” to broaden the definition of the term"data nessage".

48. M. ALLEN (United Kingdon) shared the views of previous speakers who
favoured a broad and flexible definition of the term"data nessage". However,
the definition should not be so nebul ous that the term becane inconprehensible.
He proposed repl acing the phrase "el ectronic, optical or anal ogous neans” wth
"an information systent, rather than "automated neans", since EDI was not

conpl etely automated and i nvol ved human agency. In subparagraph (f), which
defined the term"information system, the words "a systeni should be replaced
by the expression "information technol ogy"”.

49. M. MASUD ((Observer for Pakistan) said that the term "data nessage”
enphasi zed both the information and the nmeans of comuni cation and thus the
guestion of how the data nessage was generated or stored was not relevant. He



A/ CN. 9/ SR 592
Engl i sh
Page 8

suggested that the terns "generated" and "stored" should be deleted fromthe
definition in subparagraph (a).

50. M. MADRID (Spain), endorsing the commrents of previous speakers, suggested

that the Mbdel Law should include a definition of "electronic mail" in article 2
in order to make the Model Law as broad, yet conplete as possible. If the Mde

Law was too narrow, it would becone usel ess; however, if incorrectly drafted or

anbi guous, it would open itself to m suse.

51. M. SANDOVAL LOPEZ (Chile) favoured retaining the definition of "data
message” in article 2, subparagraph (a), as originally drafted, since that
definition was not limted to ED al one.

52. M. PHUA (Singapore) supported the United Ki ngdom proposal to replace the
phrase "el ectronic, optical or anal ogous nmeans"” with "an information systenf in
subpar agraph (a) and to anmend subparagraph (f) to read "informati on system neans
i nformati on technol ogy". He agreed that the final words of subparagraph (f),
"in a data message", should be deleted to avoid circular reasoning. The United
Ki ngdom proposal provided a definition for "data nmessage” that would facilitate
the use of technology wi thout undoing all of the Iegal fornms that dealt with
tradi tional methods of communication

53. M. LLOYD (Australia) rejected both the United Ki ngdom proposal, and the
term "aut omat ed nmeans” because neither took into account non-physical materials.
He supported the proposal of the observer for Denmark and the suggestion to
include a definition of "electronic mail" in article 2. He opposed the del etion
of the words "generated" or "stored"

54. M. TELL (France) supported the suggestion by the observer for Denmark to
retain the text as drafted, but favoured "anal ogous"” as the nore appropriate
term

55. M. SCHNEI DER (Germany) endorsed the Dani sh suggestion to retain the

definition of "data nessage" as originally drafted in subparagraph (a) and
rejected the United Ki ngdom proposal, which resulted in circular reasoning.

The neeting rose at 6 p. m




